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May 28. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services,
to exercise a renewal option to an existing agreement with Granite Pathways (Vendor #228900) 10 Ferry
St. Suite 307, Concord, NH 03301. for the provision of a Family Support Coordinator for Peer Recovery
Support Services by increasing the price limitation-by $76,000 from $225,000 to $301,000, and by
extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective upon Governor
and Executive Council'approval. 100% Other Funds.

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 2, 2017
(Item #10D), and subsequently amended, as approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
20, 2018 (Item #28).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2020.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $120,000 $0 $120,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058503 $105,000 $0 $105,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $0 $76,000 $76,000

Total: $225,000 76,000 $301,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Family Support Coordinator who works with
existing family and community support groups in order to expand services for families of individuals with
Substance Use Disorders (SUD).

This contract supports approximately 4,250 participants at 550 family support group meetings
annually with approximately 275 new family members attending each year.
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The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1. Paragraph 3, that allows the
Department to renew contract services for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of
funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for the
remaining one (1) year available at this time.

The Family Support Coordinator:

•  Represents families in a range of workgroups, committees, meetings, and other related
activities related to substance use disorder and promote family supports.

•  Recruits, enrolls, and provides supervision and support to family support group facilitators.

•  Coordinates recovery coach training along with other trainings for family support group
facilitators and other community members and provides scholarships to trainings, as
appropriate.

•  . Assesses the family support group network and identify areas where new or additional
family support groups are needed.

Peer Recovery Support Services are an integral part of the Department's overall strategy to
respond to substance use issues faced by the State of New Hampshire. The need to respond has been
increased by the opioid epidemic, which has resulted in hundreds of deaths in each of the past few years.
The rate of opioid overdoses has increased and opioid-related deaths have tripled in New Hampshire,
Overdose-related emergency department visits have increased by nearly 400%.

These family support groups provide critical support and education to families of individuals with
substance use disorders so that they can more effectively respond to their loved ones with substance
use disorders and better address other responsibilities in their lives,: as a partner, parent, employee and
engaged members of their community.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request there may be a gap in
services, which could lead to families of individuals with substance use disorders losing this critical social
support mechanism.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds from Governor Commission Funds

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

pectfully submitted.

ey A. Meyers
missioner

The Oe/xtrtmcnt of lleallh and Human Services' Mission is to join conimunities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2 to the Family Support Coordinator For Families
With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

This 2"" Amendment to the Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Granite Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Nonprofit corporation with a place of
business at 10 Ferry Street, Suite 307, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 2, 2017, (Item #10D), as amended on June 20, 2018 (Item #28), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the
contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #2 remain In full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$301,000.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2.

Granite Pathways Amendment #2
RFP-2017-BDAS-03-FAMIL Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

119
Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

Granite Pathways

Date
hk

V^mannName: Karen

Chief Financial Officer

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State, of New York County of New York on May 21. 2019 . before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed a^ve, and acknowledged th^ s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature o^otary Public or Justice of the Peace

Maryann Fabian, Contracts Administration

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

MARYANN FABIAN

NOTARY PUBLIC-STATE OF NEW YORK

NO.01FA6370396

Qualified in New York County
My Commiaalon Expires 01 •29-20_?--.^

Granite Pathways
RFP-2017.BDAS-03-FAMIL

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title;

Granite Pathways Amendment #2
RFP-2017-BDAS-03-FAMIL Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE PATHWAYS is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 08, 2009. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 613581

ss

Urn

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I8th day of May A.D. 2017.

w.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



QuickStart Page 2 of 4

Business Information

Business Details

Business Name: GRANITE PATHWAYS

Domestic Nonprofit

Corporation
Business Type:

Business Creation

Date:

Date of Formation in

Jurisdiction:

Principal Office

Address:

Citizenship / State of

Incorporation:

05/08/2009

05/08/2009

Business ID: 613581

Business Status: Good Standing

Name in State of
N

Incorporation:
ot Available

10 Ferry St, Ste 308, Concord,

NH, 03301, USA

Domestic/New Hampshire

Mailing Address: 10 Ferry St, Ste 308, Concord,
NH, 03301, USA

Last Nonprofit

Report Year:

Next Report

Year

2015

2020

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: NONE

Notification Email: NONE

Phone #:NONE

Fiscal Year End
NONE

Date:

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

1  Other Services (except Public Administration) Other Social Advocacy Organizations

OTHER / provide community centers offering

2  educational, employment, and peer support
for people recovering from mental illness

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 2 of 2

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInformation?businessID=416... 5/21/2019



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, \i.J I \\ iQYV\ Ql'^t , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)(Name of the elected Officer of tl

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of, _G rOYM
(Agency Name) ^ '

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 19 :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the y\QV\r AgV .Ml
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the day of 20 \Q. '
(Date Contract Signe^l) —

VAAYN is the duly elected v\nv\clal ic^r
(Name of ContrscJSignatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of ■

The forgoing instrument was acknoiMedged before me this day of 20

By VaV\ ■
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL) qoNNA KEEFE
Notary Public • New Ham^lre

My Commission Exptree September 7, w •
Commission Expires:

otary Public/Justice o Pea



FEDCAREH1

ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

4/02/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

333 Westchester Ave, Suite 102

White Plains, NY 10604

914 459-6200

N?MEf^ Khalll ElaounI
Mo. Exti: 914 459-6200 610537-4220

AOMFss: khalil.elaounl@usl.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A 22276

INSURED

Granite Pathways, Inc.

303 Beimont Street

Manchester, NH 03103

INSURER B Barfcshb* llidimni llonmlH CempanlM 20044

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CUIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL:SU8R:
msi POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMWDDftYYYI LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAJMS4/IA0E OCCUR

47SPK25564203 09/30/2018 09/30/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE

iSES 7EaoSjfrenc<l
MED EXP (Any ofia pf»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POLICY rH JECT rZl LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER;

$1,000.000

$1.000.000

$20,000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3.000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY 47RWS14808204 99/30/2018 09/30/2019
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acQdenil i1.000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per perton)

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (PeracdOant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddentl

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

47SUM14808304 99/30/2018 09/30/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $25.000.000

AGGREGATE $25.000.000

X RETENTION $10000
WORKERS COMPENSATK>N

AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE rrn
OFFICERAAEMBER EXCLUDED? | N I
(Martdatory In NK)
If yee, describe urtder
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

FEWC9211281 12/11/2018 12/11/2019
W PER
A STATIITP

OTH
ER—

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT | $1,000,000

Professional Liab

Abuse & Molest

47SPK25564203

47SPK25584203

09/30/2018

09/30/2018

09/30/2019

09/30/2019

$3mm Agg/$1mm Occ

$3mm Agg/$1mm Occ

OESCRtPTKJN OF OPERATKINSI LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACOR0101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space M required)

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services is included as additional Insured as
required by written contract

State of New

Hampshire,Department of Health

and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

UJIM

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#825380182/M24449200

<£> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
KZECM
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Consolidated Financial Statements Together with
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

REDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

September 30, 2018 and 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PDBUC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of
FEDCAP RehabUlCadon Services, inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
FEDCAP Rehabilitation Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries (cpllectively,
"FEDCAP*^, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position
as of September 30,2018 and 2017, and ̂ e related consolidated statements of
activities and 'cash flows for the years then end^, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Managemenfa responsibility for the financial statements
Management is rupbnsible for the preparation and fair plantation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica; (his includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control. relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
fi^ from material misstatcment, whether due to fraud or error

OT.COM

Auditor'a responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing starxlards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require'lhat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to. obtain audit evidence about (he
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to FEDCAP's preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the efrcclivcness of FEDCAP's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

U.8. ffannr Irmcf Onn Themen mtOTwIcM Ltf



Grant Thornton

We believe that ^e audit evidence we have obtained i$ sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of FEIX^AP Rehabilitation
Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other matters

Supplementary Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole. The accompanying
supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures. These
additional procedures included compering and reconciling the information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our opinion,
the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated fmanciai statements as a whole.

New York» New York

April 8,2019

-2-



FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As^f September 30,.201.6 snd.2017

2DI8 2017

ASSETS

CURJIENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents S  10.814,947 $. 14.353,025

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately S4,622,800 in 2018 and Sl,476,000 in 2017) 44,128,183 42,224,021

Contributions end gronts receivable (net of allowance for

uncollectible contributions of approximately S2i0,000 in 2018

and SO in 2017) 1,296,528 3.085.378

Inventories, net 244.690 402,669

Prepaid expenses and other assets 9.413.702 ■ 5.120,104

Total current assets 65,898,050. 6'5j'85,19.7

Investments 18.227,270 14.724,135

Property, plant and equipment, net 82,070,717 74,924,787

Art objects 43,950 21,750

Beneficial inter^t in remainder trust 4,646.739 628,759

Other assets 1.135.75^, .  - 108.000

106,124,430 90.407,431

Total assets S 172.022,480. $..155,592,628.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities , , $. 37.108,748 S  32,382,996

Deferred revenues 4,129,907 5,064,293

Advances from government agency 1,485,361 1,500,000

Current revolving loans 17,853.273 14,653.273

Current portion of obligation under capital leases 1,944,244 1,672.075

Notes payable, current 1,099,081. .  . 674.420

Total current liabilities 63,620,614 55.947.057

LONG-TERM UABILITIES

Capital lease obligation 35,351',613 34,867,513

Notes payable 31,337,292 22,750,756

Revolving loan -
3,000,000

Other liabilities _ .. _4.67.0.840. 3,407,780.

Total liabilities 134,980,359 119,973,106

Commitments and contingencies

NET ASSETS

28,407^688Unrestricted 32,810,556

Temporarily rcsiriclcd 6,678,580 2,224,538

Permanently restricted _  .1,955,853 .  584.428

Total net assets .  37,042.121 35.619,522

Total liabiliiies and net assets S 172,022,480 $ 155.592,628

The accompanying notes are an inleff'ai pan of these consolidatedfinancial statements.

-3.



FEDCAP REHABILltATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Activities

' -

.  _ 2011 ,2017.

Tesiperatlly f^CIUllUUltlj Tenperarfiy PcfuuBcitly

Uarcsttfcted RestTlttri__. Rgtikfad Tetaf .UaresUleted , .  Restridad[ . .Restrtcfed

REVENUES
-

• ̂  - " ••
■

Cofltnct scniccs snd ptodKO S 107,411^32 $  S - S 107,411,632 S 102367,073 S  ?■ 5 ;= S 102367373
Rehsbilitnion and vocsiionBl pngnns 154317,661 i 154317.661 137372,49? • s  137372.199
Cootributions anl (rmts 22,664,411 50,000 V 22,714,411 13,067,009 1,434,417 14301,426
Inhertnl contribution 4,g41,419 73493«6 1371.425 13,462,430 1,945.405 1,915,105
Unfcalizcd gains on tnvestnKnb 554,651 - - S5435I 976354 • •  976354
Interest incoflK 347,997 :• •- 347397 319,607 i- .5 319307
Mtscelteneous rrvcouc <14,910 ••• : 444,910 1,140,445 - (.110,145
Net cssds released from rctrictwra 2,145344 (23453441 - . 779.151 (779.151) .

Total leveraxs 293.475m. 4.454.042 1371.425 299300.706 257.441947

1 1

\

,  251304313.

EXPENSES

Prognm services:
Cortnct scrtrices and products 94,956,101 94,956.101 91,714,640 • 91.714310
Reh^ilitation and vocxtronal prognms 161,461391 >61,461391 131,141,632 • >  I3I.1II332

256.417399 256.417.699 222.900312 • .... . 222.900312

Sup pelting services:
Management and general 39394,457 ? - •- 39394,457 33.702,035 • 33,702335
Devetopmert 1365,951. r, .. 1,165.951. 1312,479. ... .... ..T . . .1312,479.

.. 41.460.40} 41.460.401 .  35314.514 i  35314314

iMal expenses 297.f7l.l07
•• . -.1^ •

297.171,107. .  254314,426
- ' '.. ...

.e . .. 254314.426.

Qange in net assets (4.402.16S) 1.421399 (365.479) 655366 2I93r

Net assets at beginniif of year 32310356 2324331 5M.42S 35319322^ 33,176.4)5 .  :i369372i 544.421 ;35330:'l)5;

Net assets ti end of year S  2t.4073U S  6,67i3tt) S 1355353 5  37.042,121 S  3UI0356 s  iijSiin't- j 544.424 i- ̂ 3S3'I93Z2«

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consoluiatedfinancial statements.

-4-



FEDCAP-REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows '

i

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATrNG ACTIVmES

Change in net assets S 1,422,599 S 289,387

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,432,003 4,116,984

Bad debt provision 4,850,731 299,600

Inherent contribution (13,462.430) (1,985,805)

Unrealized gains on investments (554,658) (976,558)

Change in assets and iiabililies:
Accounts receivable (3,281,883) (8,829,574)

Contribution receivable 2,318,436 (594,742)

Inventories .  157,979 12,270

Prepaid expenses and other assets (3,883,995) (1,951,224)

Beneficial interest in remainder trust 6,363 (52,847)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,785,750 3,181,808

Deferred revenue (934,386) 1,421,674

Other liabilities 614,594. 822,186

Net cash used in of>erating activities (5.528,897) (4,246.841)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of Investments 43,028 8,015,797

Purchase of Investments (2,446,391) (4,415,301)

Cash received in acquisition 906,169 4,470,103

Capital expenditures (4.542.620) (2,228,568)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (6,039.814) 5.842,031

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Decrease) increase in advances h^m government agency (14,639) 1,500,000

Change in revolving loans (249,000) 1,166,575

Proceeds from notes payable 9,564,622 ■-

Repayment of notes payable (982,488) (745,144)

Repayment of capital lease obligations (287.862) (132.832)

Net cash provided by financing activities 8.030.633 1,788,599

(Decrease) increase In cash and cuh equivalents (3,538,078) 3,383,789

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEhTTS
Beginning of year 14,353.025 10.969,236

End of year s 10,8.14,947. s .1.4,353,025

Supplemerftal disclosure of cash flow information;
Cash interest paid during the year .$ 1,834,062 s 1.443^501
Fixed assets acquired through capital lease s 1,044.131.

/

s

The accompanying notes art an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial statemenlSi.
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES*
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2018 and 2017

1, ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACnVITIES
.1 ^

Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc. ("FRS") is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under
the laws of New York Slate. FRS is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 50l(cX3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehensive range of vocational and related services to individuals with
disabilities and other woiic-related disadvantages who face significant barriers to employment. FRS*s goal
is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community end full participation in the
economic mainstream. |

t

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecaxe, office services, and industrial [
divisions of FRS. The primary customers in these divisions are federal, and New York State and City j
agencies and certified home health agencies, that contract with FRS for services.

I  »

As part of FRS's rehabilitation and vocation programs, FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessments, and vocational counseling. After evaluation, FRS offers
training in mail clerk/messenger services, building/custodial services, culinary arts/food services, data
entry, office skills, document imaging, hospitality operations, end security operationf FRS then seeks to
employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS's rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS .
also offers the Chelton Loft, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental

'  illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

On July 1,2011, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Wildcat Services Corporation ("Wildcat"),
a nonprofit entity located in New York City thai provides employment training, jobs placement and
"supportive employment" opportunities for individuals with barriers to employment.

On October 1,2012, FRS acquired and became the sole member of ReServe Elder Service, Inc.
("ReServe"), a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches continuing professionals age
55+ with organizations that need their expertise. ReServe provides direct services, administrative support,

'  and capacity-building expertise in schools, social service agencies, cultural institutions, and public agencies.

On October 1,2013, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Community Workshops, Inc. (d/b/a
Community Work Services) ("CWS"), a nonprofit corporation located in Boston, Massachusetts, whose
-mission is to help people who have barriers to work obtain employment and achieve greater self-sufficiency /
through job training, placement, and support services.

On September 1,201S, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Easter Seals New York, Inc.
("ESNY*), a nonprofit entity whose purpose Is to provide program and services for people with disabilities,
assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to communities in developing necessary,
and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance for people with disabilities which will j
enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community. )

On May 1, 2016, ESNY received a contribution In the form of a Red Mango franchise, incorporated as |
1184 Deer Park Ave., Inc. (" II84" or "Red Mango"). II84 is currently managed as a for profit [
corporation, and operates as a social enterprise which includes a training center and employment
opportunities for veterartt. ;

i



FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September30,2018 and 2017 . ■ - . -

On May I, 2016, FRS acquired and became ihe sole member of Granite Pathways, Inc. ("CP**), a nonprofit
entity whose.mission is to provide services to empower and support adults with mental illness to pursue
their persona] goals ihrou^ education, employment, stable housing, and meaningful relationships.

On September 1.2016, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Ea^er Seals Rhode Island, Inc.
("ESRI"). a nonprofit entity whose purpose Is to provide services to ensure that all people with disabilllies
or specif needs and their families have equal'opportunities to live, leam, work and play in their
communities.

On November 1,2016, CP became the sole member of Seacoast Pathways, Inc ("SeacoasfO a nonprofit
entity whose mission is to support adults living with mental illness on tlM^ir paths to recovery throu^ the
wortt-ordered day.

On February 1,2017, FRS became the sole member of Single Stop USA Inc. ("SS"), a nonprofit entity that
provides coordinated services to holistically connect people to the resources they need to attain higher
education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-sufficiency.

On October 31,2017, FRS entered into a combination agreement with Benevolent to'become its sole
member. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and enhancement of our ability to
provide economic wcllbcing for the individuals we serve. The combination further diversifies funding to
individuals and families in need, through non-govemment sources.

On April 1, 2018, FRS entered into a combination agreement with MVLE to become its sole member.
MVLE provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with disabilities in the
Northern Virginia ̂ d Washington, D.C. area. This combination was predicated on the syner^es of
mission and geographic expansion of services in the Mid-Atlantic Region.

On July 1,2018, FRS entered into a combination agreement with Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT') to
become its sole member. ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
throu^ outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration
programs In the Central Texas region. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into the Southwest Region. The addition of ESCT expands the core
services to the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations are in New York
and Rhode Island.

On July 1, 2018, F.RS entered into a combination agreement with Easter Seals North Texas ("ESNT") to
become its sole member. ESNT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and immunity housing and integration
programs In the North Texas region. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into the Southwest Region. The addition of ESNT expands ̂  core
services to the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations arc In New York
end Rhode Island.

Collectively, FRS, Wildcat. RcScrve, CWS, ESNY, 1184, CP, ESRI, SS, Seacoast, Benevolent. MVLE,
ESCT, and ESNT are referred to as "FEDCAP."
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2016 and 2017

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLIOES

Basis of PreeentatloD

The accompanying consolidued financial statements of FEOCAP have been prepaied in accordance with
accounting principles generally awpted in the Urijted States of America ("US GAAP") using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminaled in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, FEOt^P's consolidated financial.stalements distinguish between unrestricted, temporarily
restricted and perm'anently'restricted net assets and changes in net assets as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - consist of all funds which arc expendable, at the discretion of FEDCAP's
management and B'oard'of Directors, for carrying on daily operations. These^fui^ have neither been
restricted by donors nor set aside for any specific purpose.

Tempomrilv-Restna^^ net assets that have been limited by donor-imposed stipulations
that either expire with the passage of time or can be fulfllled and removed by the actions of FEDCAP
pursuant to those stipulations.

■PermanentiV.R'esin^cd.Net 'Assets-- net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that require
■  resources to' be maintained as funds of a permanent dui^ion.

Cash Equivalents

FEDCAP considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase. Including investments in short-term certificates of deposit and certain money maricet funds, to be
cash equivalents.

Contribution and Grant Revenue

FEDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such
assets Is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and
contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as either permanently
restricted if FEDCAP is requir^ to maintain the contribution permanently or temporarily restricted if the
stipulation limits (he use of the contribution to specific purposes or a time period. Contributions with donor
restrictions that are received and met in (he same fiscal year are recorded as unrestricted contributions.
Otherwise, once stipulated time restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets as "net assets released from restrictions" in the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

I

Revenue Recognitlbn and Deferred Revenue

FEDCAP's revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates. For
performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized In (he period when related expenditures have been
incurred, milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the
respective contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue from the sale of related prc^ucts, which is
recognized at the time of shipment.

•.--8- -



FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September30,2018 and 2017 . . ...

Deferred revenue represents cash received in advance of services and wi ll be recognized as the services are
perforrnjMl. Deferred revenue amounted to $4,129,907 and $5,064,293 as of September 30,2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The canying value of contributions and accounts receivable are reduced by an appropriate allowance |
for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value. FEDCAP detennines its
al lowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time receivables are past due,
FEDCAP's previous loss history, (he donor's current ability to pay its obligation, and the condition of I
the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding longer than (he parent terms
are considered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivable when they become uncollectible, and
payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as income in the period received.

Xnvebtoiies 'j
Inventories, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, ̂  valued at the
lovrer of cost or net realizable value; Cost is determined principally by the first-in, Orst«out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than SI ,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year are
carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from 3 to 40 years. Si^ificant additions or improvements extending
asset lives are capitalized; normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

FunctloDfll AliocatiOD of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. Accordin^y, certain costs have been '
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Commissions *

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide
for commissions to be paid to these organizations in the range of 0.85% to 4.00% of the contract amount.
Commissions paid relating to these contracts amounted to $2,401,578 and $2,568,642 for the years ended
September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively, and are included within contract services and products expense
in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates
and assumptions relate to estimates of collectability of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property, |
plant, and-equipment, and impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

•  \
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes tci Consolidated Financial Statements-' ' i .
September 30,2018 end 2017 - '

Fair Valoe of FlDeoeial Instrumcets

The fair value of cash and c^h equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accriied expenses and
other liabilities approximates their carrying value due to their short-term maturities. The fair N^ue of long-
term debt approximates carrying value based on current interest rates for similar instruments.

Fair Value Measurements'

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establish^ a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to .measure^ fair value and
enhances disclosure rc^uir^ents for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservabie inputs by requiring that the .observable inputs be used when
available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing (he asset or liability based on
. market data obtained independent sources. Unobservabie inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the as^t or liability based on the-best information available in the
circumstances. >

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the transparency of inputs as follows:

Level 1 • Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market
provides the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the
market.

Level 2 - Pncing inputs other than quoted prices In active markets, which are eiUter directly or
indirectly observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities include
investments for which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments
thai are fair valued using other securities, (he parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These
securities are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the inputs into
the determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management
judgment or estimation.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include
price information, .volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial instrument's level within the ftir value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes "observable"
requires significant Judgment by the entity. FEOCAP considers observable data to be (hat market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided
by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the Instrument and does not
necessarily correspond to FEDCAP's perceived risk of that instrument.

-10-



FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Soptember30,2016 and 2017 . —'

Beneficial Interest in Remainder Tmsts i

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated ber>eficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts' term. CJ{X}n termination of the trusts,
FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trusts. Trusts are recorded as increases to net assets at
the fair value of trust assets, less the present value of the estimated future payments to be made under the
specific terms of the trusts. At September 30.2018 and 2017, FEDCAP's interest in these tnists Is reflected
at fair value in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and is classified as Level 3
within the fair value hierarchy.

2018 2017

Balaoct, beginning of year S  628,759 S 575,912

Contributions / additions 4,024,343 8,578

Distributions (5,911) (13,516)

Depreciation (appreciation) .  . (452) . 577785

Balance, end of year $  4.646.739 $ 628,759

Impairment of Long*lived Assets

FEDCAP.reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property btkI equipment arul other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such asserts may not be fully recoverable. Recoverabillty of long-iivcd assets is assessed by a comparison of
the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.

If ̂timated future net cash flONvs are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded in an amount to r^uce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value. '

Tax-Exempt Status

Fedcap follows guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, including issues relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This
guidance provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial
statements if the position is "more-likely-than-not" to be sustained if the position were to be challenged by
a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position,
without regard to the likelihood thai the tax position may be challenged.

Fedcap is exempt from federal income tax under IRC section 501 (c)(3), though it is subject to tax on
Income unrelal^ to their respective exempt purpose, unless that income is otherwise excluded by the
Code. These organizations have processes presently in place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-exempt
status; to identify and report unrelated income; to determine their filing end tax obligations in jurisdictions
for which they have nexus; and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered tax
positions. Fedcap has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition
or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . - 1
September 30,201B and 2017 = •

1184, a for*prof)t corporaiion, commenced business operations in May of 2016; the Organization has not
calculated a tax provision as the prelected tax liability is immaterial from a financial stttement perspective.
In addition, 1184 has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition
or disclosure, in the consolidated financial statements.

3. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

At September 30. 2018 and 2017, contributions receivable, net of tHe allowance for doubtful accounts,
consisted of the following:

2018 . . 2017

S . 1,296.528. S. 3,085,378.

Approximately 26% of the contributions receivable (gross) is due from one donor at September 30,2018.
Approximately 69% of the contributions receivable (gross) is due from two donors at September 30,2017;

INVESTMENTS

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30;

2018 " 2017

Money market funds S 5,329,461 S 3,176,676
Mutual funds 12,897.609 .. I l ;547.4S9.

"S 18722%2?0 S ' 14,724, i 35.

FEOCAP's mutual fund investments are classifted as Level I within the fair value hierarchy. FEOCAP's
money market fund investments do not meet the definition of a security under US GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.

!»

Amounts due within one year S 1,237,222 S 3,074,667
Amounts due in one to five years 309,306 '10,711.

1,546,528 3,085,378 '

Less: allowance for uncollectible receivables (250,000) ■.
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements •

5. INVENTORIES, NET . t

t

Inventories consisted of the following at September 30; ■

2018.. .. 2017

Inventories:

Raw materials $  219,880 S  369,867

Work-in-process and finished goods 114,810 122,802

Reserve .  ..(9b.O0O) (90,000)

$  244,690 ,$_ .402,669.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
1,

Fixed assets, net, consisted of the following at September 30:-

.  2018 . '  2017

Land S  1,017,809 $  1,017,809

Building improvements 3,492,788 531,382

Buildings 37.052,760 33.280,420

Capital jease - building 35.918,547 35,918,547

Furniture, fixtures and computer systems 14,157,674 11,509,522

Leasehold improvements 9,143.432 , 7,002,207

rob.783,p!;p 89.259.887

Less: accumulated depreciation ... 'ifS;? 12,293) ,.(1.4.335.100)

S; .82.070.71-7 $ 74,924.787

E)cprcciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017 was S4,432,003
and 54,116,984, respectively.

7. CAPITAL LEASES

In May of 2014, FRS entered into a condominium leasehold agreement in a building located at 20S East
42nd Street in New York City for 64,303 square feet of space consisting of the entire second and third floor
and a portion of the ground floor. FRS began occupying the space in December 2014 and the agreement
expires in fiscal 2043. The interest rate is fixed at 4.20%. FRS accounted for this agreement as a capital
lease, and as such, the related cost of $35,918,547 representing the present value of the total future
minimum lease payments due at the inception of the agreement, is included within "property, plant and
equipment, nef* in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at September 30,2018
and 2017.,FRS occupied the condominium in December 2014 and recorded depreciation expense of
$1,238,571 in fiscal 2018 and 2017. The outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30,
2018and2017, is$36.353,740and$36,461,573,respectively.

13-



FEDCAP rehabilitation SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements i -O' >
September 30,2018 end 2017 .

During fiscal 2015, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the ̂ ount
of S22,074 principal and interest are paid monthly. As of Septiember 30.2018. and 2017, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement Is $15,452 and Si 1,037, respectively. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease as of September 30,2018 and 2017, is S6.622 and S11,038, respectively. The
maturity date is March 31,2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.73%.

During fiscal 2015, CWS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
ofS44,4d4, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30,2018, and 2017, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is S44,464. respectively. The outstanding principal
balance on the luse as of September 30,2018 and 2017, is SO and $22,232, respectively, the maturity date
is March 31.2020 and the iriterest rate is fixed al 6.73%.

During fiscal 2015, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
ofSS0,78S, principal and interest are paid monthly. As ofSeptember 30.2018, and 2017, the accumulated
depreciation balance was S 52,511 and $36,040, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30,2018 and 2017, was $28,627 and $44,745, respectively. The maturity date is
. June 30,2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.97%.

In 2015 and 2016, ESCT obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance equipment In the amount
of S109,418, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2018, the accumulaled
depreciation balance was $5,534. The outstanding principal balance on the leases as ofSeptember 30,2018
was $47,190. The maturity dates run through May 14,2021 with varying interest rates from 0% - 0.99%.

During fiscal 2018, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
ofS 128,298, principal and Interest are paid monthly. As ofSeptember 30,2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $35,573. The outstarrdlng principal balance on the lease as of September 30,2018
was $93,362. The maturity dates are through June 30, 2022 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.70% and
8.00%.

During fiscal 2018, FRS and ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the
amount of$370.074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As ofSeptember 30,2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $122,766. The outstanding principal balance on the lease as ofSeptember 30,
2018 was $248,418.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital tease to finance vehicles in the amount
of$82,264 principal and interest arc paid monthly. As ofSeptember 30, 2018, accumulated depreciation
associated with these lease agreements Is S13,914. The outstanding principal balarKC on the lease as of
September 30,2018 is $77,578. The maturity dates are through November 30,2022 and the interest rate
varies from 7.10% to 7.45%.

On September 14,2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance office furniture In the
amount of $463,495, principal and interest arc paid monthly. As of September 30,2018, the accumulated
depreciation balance was SO. The outstanding principal balance on the'lease as ofSeptember 30,2018 was
$440320. The maturity dates are through June 2023 and the interest rate is 6.58%.
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FEQCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2018 and 2017. . .. . .

The.following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present v^ue of the net minimum lease payments as of.September 30,2018:

YSr'End1ngSchtc"mh>fe'r-"30r

2019 $ 1.944.244

2020 2,156,611

2021 2.159.924

2022 2,089,325

2023 1,990.114

2023 52.678.445

Total minimum lease payments -OjiOfSiiSSS

Less: Amount representing interest t(2S{TO2,8b6)

Present vaFue of net minimum lease payments .S. .3.7v295;8S:7.
/

8. REVOLVING LOANS

Israel Dtsconot Bank of New York

FRS entered into a revolving loan agreement with Israel Discount Bank of New York ("fOB") to finance
working capital needs with an aggregate principal amount not to exceed Si 5,000,000. The line is
collateraliz^ by FRS's accounts receivable and maluredon January 18,2019. The interest rate for the
revolving loan agreement is the Prime Rate. Asof September 30,2018, and 2017, FEDCAP had
borrowings on this line of credit of $14,653,273, respectively, at an interest rate of 5.25% and 4.25%,
respectively. Subsequent to year end, the maturity date was extended, see Note 20.

RBS Citizens Bank, N.A,

ESNY has an agreement with RBS Citizens Bank, N.A for a $3,000,000 revolving line of credit with FRS
as the co-borrower, which matured on December 15,2018 and .was subsequently extended until May 2019;.
As of September 30,2018, and 2017, ESNY had borrowings on this line of credit of $3,000,000,
respectively, at an interest rate of 4.5% and 3.50%, respectively.

Frost Bank

ESCT obtained an uncollateralized revolving line of credit with Frost Bank with a $200,000 limit that
matured on February 6,2019. As of September 30,2018, ESCT had borrowings on this line of credit of
$200,000 at a floating interest rate, defined as 1.75Y* plus the financial institution's prime rate. This line of
credit was paid in full in February 2019.

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable

On December 5,2014. ESNY entered into a $1,980,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition
of certain property located in Valhalia, New York. The note was secur^ by the properfy and is guaranteed
by FRS. The inlcrtst rate is 3.66% for the first 60 months then, as of the first day of the sixty-first month,
the interest rate will reset to 1.75% in excess of the then bank's five-year Cost of Funds. In no event shall
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Sgpteni^r,30,jjjjg and 2017 _ ■ ' .

the rtset rate be less than 3.66%. Principal and interest of $9,153 is payable monthly through the maturity |
date of January 1.2025. At^ptember30,201Sand2017,theoutstandingprincipalb8lancewas ■
$1,832,909 and $1,874,696, respectively.

On November <t, 2016, MVLE entered into a $350,000 note payable with Union Bank & Trust. The note is
secured by accounts receivable and equipment. The interest rate is 4.5% and princifMl and interest are paid •
monthly. The note matures in Novembw 2019. AsofScptember 30,2018,Iheoutstandingprincipal i
balance was $142,471. I

On Dec 13,2016, ESCT entered into a $18,558 note payable with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. The note |
is secured by the assets of ESCT. The interest rale is 6.1 % and principal and interest are paid monthly. The ^
note matures in December 2021. As of September 30,2018, the outstanding principal balance was $12,702.

OnMay 18, 2017, ESCT entered intoa$243,650 note payable with Wells Fargo.N.A: The note is secured ij
by accounts receivable and equipment. The interest rate is defined at a variable rate plus prime and '
principal and interest are paid monthly. The note matures in May 2020. As of September 30.2018, the
outstanding principal balance was $151,086.

Boods Payable

In December 2013, PRS entered into a Loan Agreemerit with Build NYC Resource Corporation C'Build
NYC")t a locaJ development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of the sixth
floor of a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued
$18,450,000 of tax-exempt rcycnue bonds ("Scries 2013 A**). Monthly payments of interest commencedin
June 2014. The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rale of 4.2% with a maturity date of December 1,2033.
The Series A bonds were placed with IDB and, as part of the bond purchase and continuing covenant
agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB of $4,000,000,
which is Inciud^ within inve^ments in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at
September 30,2018 and 2017. At September 30,2018 and 2017, the outstanding principal balance of the
Series2013A bonds was $17,025,000 and $17,520,000, respectively.

In December 2010, ESNY In connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation and ^
RBS Citizens Banl^ N.A. Issued $5,250,000 in Seri^ 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds ("Series 2010").
The Series 2010 bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located In Irondequolt,
New York and to refinance certain'ESNY debt. The Series 2010 bonds are secured by a mortgage on all
properties and improvements financed by the bond and arc guaranteed by FRS. ESNY may elect to prepay
some portion or all of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee as defined in the agreement. The ,
agreement also requires bank approval prior to ESNY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010
bonds are subject to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1,2016
and thereafter every five years throu^ June 1,2036. At September 30,2018 and 2017, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2010bonds was $4,399,430 and $4,537,395, respectively.

On February 23, 2011, ESNY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection
with the Series 2010 Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstandingnotionalamount of $4,257,920 and
$4,526,910 at September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively. The outstanding notional amount decreases.
In conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in.January 2031. ESNY \
remits interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest el a variable rale (68% of the sum of the |
monthly LIBOR. rale plus 2.65% (3.34% at September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively)). The fair value of j
the interest rate swap agreement as of Septemter 30,2018 and 2017 reflect^ a liability of $355,400 '
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and S625315. respectively. The swap is included within other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position, and is classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

In December 2017, FRS entered into a loan agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation ("Build
NYC"), a local developrfient corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the renovation,
equipping and furnishing of the improvements of the sixth floor located at 633 Third Avenue In New York
City and related expenses. Build NYC issued $9,280,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Scries 2017A")
and $715,000 of taxable revenue bonds ("Scries 2017B"). Monthly payments of interest commenced In
February 2018. The Series 20I7A bonds have a coupon rate of 3.9% with a maturity date of December 1,
2042. The Serics20l7B bonds have Bcoupon.ratcof4.5%Nvith amaturitydateof December 1,2027. The
2017A end 2017B bonds were placed with TD Bank. At September 30.2018, the outstanding principal
balance of the Series 2017A and 20I7B bonds was $9,116,787 and $671,807 respectively.

The foilowing is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30,
2018:

Notes Payable Bonds Payable ToUl

Year Ending September 30,
2019 $  176,504 S . 922,577 $  1,099,081

2020 181,280 981,862 1,163,142

2021 50348 1,019,829 1,070,177

2022 48,574 1.063372 1,111,846

202'3 49,307 1.105355 1,154,862

Thereafter .  1,633,155 26,119,929. 27,753,084

Total S  2,139,168 $ 31.213,024 33352,192

Less: current poillon 1,099,081

Less: bond issuance cost .  915,819.

Long-term debt, net of cunent portion $ 31337,292

10. ADVANCES FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY

On August 1,2012, FRS entered in a contract with New York City Human Resources Agency ("HRA")
to operate HRA's WeCare program in the boroughs of Brooklyn and Queens. Under the terms of the
contract, HRA may make advances for woricingcapital purposes. These advances are non-interest bearing

'and will be recouped during the course of the contract in accordance with HRA policy, but no later than the
last year of the contract. On September 29.2017, FRS received a loan of $1,500,000 from the Fund for the
City of New York to cover operating expenses pending receipt of funds from HRA. This loan Is non-
interest bearing and will be repaid no later than 30 days from the date of the loan, upon/ecelpt of the funds
from HRA or on demand for payment by the Fund for the City of New York. At September 30,2017, the
balance from this loan was $ 1,500,000. This loan was repaid in November 2017.

On August 30,2018 FRS received a loan of$l,485J6l from the Fund for the City of New Yorklocowr
operating expenses pending contract registration artd receipt of funds from HRA. This loan is non-Interest
bearing and will be repaid no later than 30 days from the date of the loan, upon receipt of the fimds from
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HRA or on demand for payment by the Fund for the City of New York. At September 30,2018, the
balance from this lo^ was $1,485,361. This loan was repaid In November of 2018.

11.' FORGIVEABLE CAPITAL ADVANCES

ESCT has received rinancial assistance for property acquisition costs from Housing and-Urban
Development C'HUD") end the Austin Housing Finance Corporation ("AHFC**). Under the terms of the
agreements, funds were provided to ESCT in the form of forgivable capital advances to purchase thirty-four
housing entities. The principle and any. interest are not due artd will be forgiven upon maturity, as long as
ESCT continues to meet the requirements to maintain the housing units available for low income persons
with disabilities. ESCT believes that the possibility that repayment will occur is remote and as such that the
treatment of the advance as a contribution upon receipt is appropriate. Accordingly, the advances were
recorded as temporarily restricted contributions that are released from restriction over the life of the
agreement.

The following table summarizes the forgivable capital advances as of September 30,2018:

Hous1q{ I

U.S. Depotneni of Housing tod Urban Development, imeresi rate or5375H, doe unless forgiven on
October i 1,2045, secured by six itoul bousing units. At September 30,2018,8279.635 was included in

lemporarily restricled net assets related to the Note.

Houstogll

U.S. Depntmeni of H^tng and Urban Development, interest rate of5.250K, due unless forgiven on
April i,2048,stcuredbyten rental housing units. At Septembier 30.2018, $527,767 was included in

temporarily restricted net as^ related to (he Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rale of 0%, unless forgiven

on May 1,2049, secured by ten rental housing units, subordinate to the $713.600 loan. At September 30,

2018, $382,292 was included in temporarily restricted net assets related to the Note.

Housing III

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on

December 1.2050, secured by eight rental housing units. At September 30,2018, $595,003 was

included in temporarily ttstricted net assets related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation, interest rale of0%, unless for^ven
on November 30.2050, secured by eight rciual housing units, subordinate to the $739,900 loan. At

September 30,2018, $397,853 was included in temporarily restricted net assets related to the Note.

Houslag IV

U.S. Deparimeni of Homing and Urban Development, interest rale of4.125%, due unless forgiven on
February 15,2053, secured by ten rental ho'uslitg units. At September 30,2018. $920,990 was included

in lemporariiy restricted net assets related to the Note.

Amoom of

.Oflghial Advance.

413.000

713,600

500,000

739,900

494.740

1,070,400
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AcDoootef

.Orielnil Advtpce.

H«udD| IV (tODllnotd)
Gly of Aittdn passed through Austin Housing Finance Coiporetion, Interest rate of0%, unless forgiven
on February 2t, 20S3, secured by ten rental housing units, subordinateto the $ 1,070,400 loan. Ai
September 30,201S, S537,673 wis included in Icmporwily ftstricted net assets related to (he Note. —<24,198..

Total S 4,336,338

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENaES

FEDCAP has leases for ofTiccs, program related facilities, and equipment expiring at various dates through
2032. The approximate future minimum lease commitments under existing operating leases are as follows:

Yii»r:Ehding.Scpitcmbcr.30I

201 9 S 7,856,201
2020 5,581,739

2021 5.042,998

2022 4,752,045

2023 3,084,738

Thereafter 10.004.661

Total $ 36.322,382

Certain office leases contain renewal and escalation clauses. For leases with escalation clauses, FEDCAP
recognized rent expense on a straight-line basis and recognized a deferred rent liability of 54,376,734
and $1,773,782 at September 30,.2018 and 2017, respectively, which is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. In addition to the base rents, FEDCAP is
obligated to pay additional amounts for increased operating costs.

Rent expense was SI 2,639,752 and $11,208,061 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

FEDCAP sublets a portion of its facilities to tertants under operating leases that expire between April 2017
and December 2025. For the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017, rental Income from these
subleases was $562,172 and $293,318. respectively. The future minimum sublease rental payments to be
received are as follows:

ycpr;Endihg.Schtcmbcr 30.

2019"" S 451.974

2020 309,641

2021 279,677

2022 290.411

Thereafter 989,946

Total $._2,32l.649.

• 19-
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FEDCAP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.

FEDCAP participates in a number offederal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. AH funds expended in connection with government grants end
contracts are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such
audits of government contracts by government agencies is presently not dclerminablc, it should not, in
the opinion of management, have a material effect on FEDCAP|s,finaitciaJ position or change in net
assets. Accordingly, no provision for any such liability ̂ ai may result has been made in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

13. TUITION REVENUE

FRS receives funding for the Career Design School from the New York State Education Department,
administered by the Bureau of Proprietary School Supervision. Crosis tuition income, which equaled net
tuition income, was S 1,012,460 and Si ,094,605 for the years ended September 3D, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, and has been included within rehabilitation and vocational programs in the accompanying
consolidate statements of activities.

14. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30,2018 and
2017:

2018 2017

For use in future periods for:

Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capita) advances

Time restricted

Total

602,1)1S  122,221 I

3,641,213

2.915,146

S  6,678,580 $ 2,224,538

1,622.427

Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017 were as follows:

2018 2017.

Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances

Time restricted

Total

$  490.089

915,325

1,440,130

$  2.845,544

779,15!

779,151

■ 20-
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15. PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

'  • ' I
Permanently restricted net assets are comprised of the follovsing as of September 30,2018 and 2017::

2018 2017

Easter Seals endowment S •• 1,880,653 S 509,428

ReServe endowment . 75;000 .; 75,000

$  1,955,853. S 584,428"

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACnONS i

Members of the Board of Directors of FEDCAP ere associated with a law firm that has provided legal
services to FEDCAP with fees of $381,465 and $312,012 during the years ended September 30,2018 and
2017, respectively. .

A CWS Board member is a trustee of the Eaton Fund. CWS leases its facilities from the Eaton Fund. Rent
paid to Eaton Fund for each of the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017 was SI 29,996.

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
%

Effective January t, l99l,FEDCAPestablishedaTaxDeferTed Annuity Retirement Plan under
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions.
Employees arc eligible to participate in the plan as of tHeir employment date.

Effective October 1.1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employees working on govemmern contracts with a
defined contribution pension plan based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible to participate
in the plan upon satisfactory completion of a three>month probationary period.-

Effective October 1,1994, FEDCAP established a Defined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In
November 1,2010, the Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in
the plan immediately upon hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to 3% of their salaries.
Employer matching contributions fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans. Each participant is fully and immediately vested in employee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plans amounted lo $6,648,313 and $6,186,322 for the years ended September 30. 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

18. ACQUISITIONS

On February 1,2017, FRS entered into a combination agreement with Single Stop USA, Inc. to become its
sole member. The determination to acquire Single Stop USA, Inc. was predicated on^the similarities In
mission. Single Stop provides coordinated services to holistically connect pMple to the resources they need
to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-sufnclency. This acquisition was
affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $1,947,081 was
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recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the Identifiable assets
acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

,  • . 1 1

On November 1,2016, CP entered into a combination agreement with Seacoast Pathways. Inc. to become
'  its sole member' The determination to acquire Seacoast Pathways, Inc. was predicated on the similarities in

mission and a geographic expansion of services in the New England Region. The mission of Seacoast
Pathways is to support adults living with mental Illness on their paths to recovery through the work-ordered
day. This acquisition was e^iected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent
contribution of $38,724 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of
the idehtifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and'liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisitions for the year ended September 30,2017:

I I

Single_StQP_USA_. - GP. Total....

Cash and cash equivalents $  4,434,379 $ 35,724 . $  4,470,103

Accounts receivables, net 252,430 252.430

Contriutions and grants receivables 1.449.503 sr 1,449,503

investments s 3,000 ' 3,000

Prepaid expenses and other assets 131,553 131,553

Other assets 271.816 271,816

Property, plant and equipment, net 958,033 -
958,033

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,671,188) . r. (2,671,188)

Deferred revenue (2,485,700) - (2,485,700)

Other liabilities (393,745) - (393.745)

$  I-.947,081 $ 38.724 .$ 1,985,805.

On October 31,2017, FRS entered into a combination agreement with Benevolent to become its soje
member. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and enhancement of our ability to
provide economic wellbeing for the individuals we serve. The combination furdier diversifies funding to
individuals and families in need, through non-government sources. This acquisition was affected without
the transfer of consideration, arid as such an inherent contribution of $1,231 was recogniz^, which
represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assum«].

On April ), 2018, FRS entered into a combination agreement with MVLE to become its sole member.
MVLE provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with disabilities in the
Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area. This combination was predicated on the synergies of
mission and geographic expansion of services in the Mid-Atlantic Region. This acquisition was affected •
without the transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $3,644,595 was recognized,
which represented the excess of the acquisition dale fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

■i

On July 1,2018, FRS entered into a combination a^wncnt with E^cr Seals Central Texas ("ESCT') to j
become its wle member. ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle I
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through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration
programs in the Central Texas region. This combination was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into tt>c Southwest Region. The addition of ESCT expands the core
services to the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations are in New York
and Rhode Island. This acquisition was affected without the.transfer.of consideration, and as such an
inherent contribution of $4,368,955 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

On July I, 2018, FRS entered into a combination agreement with Easter Seals North Texas C'ESNT") to
become its sole member. ESNT provides services to indiNdduals with disabilities throughout the life cycle
through outpatient medical rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and Int^ration
programs in the North Texas region. This combination .was predicated on the similarities of mission and
geographic expansion of services into the Southwest Region. The addition of ESNT expands the core
services to the populations served through our Easter Seals brand whose current operations are In New York
and Rhode Island. This acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an
inherent contribution of $5,447,649 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisitions for the year ended September 30.2018;

BcnevoleBi MVLE ESCT ESNT . .  Tots)

Cash and cash equivalents S  S,4lt S  633,234 S  2)5266 S  52.181 S  906.169

Accounts rccdvables, net . 2.194.671 665,681 362,658 3223.010 -1

Grants rccdvtbles . 641,971 137,615 779286 1
Prepaid expenses end other assets mi 12.077 134,423 655,117 873,698

Invtsiments . 545,114 545,114

Other assets . 384,614 120,094 81,151 585,839 !•
Property, plant and equipment, net l,693JI8 3,948,025 347,639 5,991,182

Bcncficiai inlercst in ronaindcr tnisl •: • 4,024,343 4,024243 u

Accounts payable and accrued liablliliei (W3I) (117,914) (762280) (353,169) (1,940,001) .

Other Itabililics (326,652) (165.815) (156,000) (648,467) If

Revolving loans (200,000) (249,000) (449,000)

Notes payable (200,953) (228.110) ••• V(429.06))

S  1.23! 'S\ 3'fi44:S95: S. .4.368;955; •$' :5.447;649. S  13,462.430"

19. CONCENTRATIONS

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 22% and 20^ of total revenues
during the years ended September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively. FEDCAP provides offslte data entry
personnel, custodial and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one
New York State organization, which comprised 7% and 5% of total revenues during the years ended
September 30,2018 and 2017, respectively.

Financial instruments that potentially subject FEDCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") lirriit. Management docs not believe that a
significant risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution.
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20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCAP evaluated its September 30,2018 consolidated ftnanctal statements for subs^uent events through !
April 8,20l9»thedate thecon^lidated financial statements wcreavaii^le for issuance. FEDCAP is |
unaware of any events which would require recognition or disclosure In the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, except as noted below. i ' '

I » ,

On November 1,2018, FRS acquired Kennedy Scott, Limited, a United Kingdom company through a stock ;
purchase.' Kennedy Scott provides high quality job support, placement, retention and relat^ services to
people in the United Kingdom. ;

I

On December 31,2018, FRS entered into an agreement with Israel Discount Bank ofNew York to extend |-
the maturity date of the revolving loan to October 17,2020 and to increase the revolving loan, as described
in Note 8. by Sl0,000,000 to an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $25,000,000. i;
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Schedule of Functional Expenses
For the year end^ September 30, 2018 (wrth comparative totals for.tho yearjendod September.30. 2017)
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Deborah Jameson Finance Committee

Lynne Westaway Treasurer

William Rider Interim Chairman

Monsignor John Quinn

Courtney Gray'Tanner

Nick Brattan

Jacqueline Ellis Seacoast Pathways Board Chair

Heather Blumenfeld SHRC Advisory Board

Mark Lore



Lynn Fuller

603-817-6174

Circleofhope603@vahoo.com

Summary:

I have spent many hours volunteering and supporting awareness to the disease of addiction. As
a mother of 2 sons in long term recovery, I understand the importance of advocating for
families who suffer in silence and the critical need they have to utilize support services as a part

of family recovery. This is a family disease and we must reduce the stigma and shame
associated with addiction so the entire family can heal by reaching out for support or
treatment.

Trainings:

Recovery Coach Academy - 2016

RCA Trainer - 2016

NAMI Facilitatortraining-2015, 2017

Recovery Coaching for Parents - 2018
Coalition Capacity building & Community Engagement training - 2018

NH Leadership Series

Experience:

September 2019- to present

NH Leadership series

Trained for 8 months in leadership skills, advocacy and th legislative process.
Team building with students and leaders. Worked with State legislators on effective advocacy

October 2019-present

Strafford county Court Diversion Program

Working with youth in Strafford county in a diversion setting to avoid criminal charges.
Board member and advocate.

August 2017 - to present

Contracted Coordinator for the NH Family Support Groups with Granite Pathways

I am responsible for managing the 20 plus volunteer facilitators. I ensure these volunteers are
supported with marketing/educational material by staying in contact with them 2-3 times a
month. I also attend community events to promote these groups.

I'm responsible for monthly statistical reporting to the Bureau of Drug & Alcohol.

January 2017 - to present

Friends of NH Drue Court Board Member - Concord NFI

As a member, I work to continue the quality of Drug Courts throughout NH. My goal is to
implement family support for family members of Drug Court participants. We are also aiming to
insert Drug Court programs in every NH county. We work together to hold fund raising events to



support the board, and provide added incentives for Drug Court participants as it funds family's
activities.

August 2017 - to present

NH Governor's Commission on Treatment Task Force - Concord NH

I have a seat on this commission and weigh in on the Importance of family supports.

February 2014 - to present

Circle Of Hooe - Founder/Facilitator - Farmineton NH

I facilitate this family support group for family members who have loved ones suffering from
SUD. Circle of HOPE provides a safe and confidential environment where families work together
to share struggles and strategies for coping with addiction.
•  I seek out educators and persons in long term recovery to speak at our meetings

•  Orchestrated panels to present at local forums addressing addiction

•  Participated in local events with Farmington DP like The National Family Night Out and
candlelight vigils

•  Presented with Catholic Charities events addressing the importance of Family Support and
their recovery

February 2013 - to present

Strafford Countv Task Force Team Volunteer-Somersworth NH

•  I work within the county to implement programs to improve SUD awareness and support
services

•  Participated in yearly Opiate Summits as a presenter of Family Support Groups
•  Presented to local law enforcement as a family member of 2 sons in long term recovery

• Worked with a team to implement standing order to pharmacies for the prescription of
Naloxone

May 2013 - to present

Prevention Leadership Group Volunteer - Strafford Countv NH

• Working towards implementing prevention tools throughout the county for communities
and schools

• Worked with several professional members to gather information pertaining to existing
prevention programs addressing addiction in our schools

• Worked with groups to design a brochure to be distributed throughout the community
addressing prevention strategies

February 1991 - present

Central Cuts-Salon Owner & Stvlist- Farmington NH

•  Manage light bookkeeping

•  Schedule and perform hair styling services

•  Maintain a safe and professional environment

•  Often offer support and guidance to clients



PATRICIA M. REED

NEW HAMPSHIRE STATE DIRECTOR

QUALIFICATIONS

Demonstrated executive with more than 30 years' experience serving Individuals with disabilities In
children and youth services, addiction services, and residential treatment programs

EXPERIENCE

2018 New Hampshire State Director, Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc., Manchester, NH
•  Responsible for overall program management, program expansion and development, fiscal

integrity, quality compliance and external relationships In New Hampshire for Granite Pathways,
Inc.

2017 to 2018 Consultant

•  Provide system analysis and consultation for a variety of entities providing services to individuals
with Intellectual and other developmental disabilities and behavioral health needs

•  Led three NH regional agencies serving this population to plan for youth with challenging
behaviors to receive adult services to meet their needs in a community based context

2015 to 2017 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Lakeview Management, Inc., Austin TX

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty
Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wl

•  Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program
development to most effectively utilize Lakeview's resources

•  Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2015 Executive Director, Lakeview Neurorehabilitation Center, Inc:, Effingham, NH

•  Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty
Hospital and Rehabilitation Center In Waterford, Wl

•  Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program
development to most effectively utilize Lakeview's resources

•  Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2014 to 2015 Children's Director, NH Bureau of Behavioral Health, Concord, NH

•  Responsible to provide leadership in planning and development of the state children's behavioral
health system, act as liaison between CMHC Children's programs and the state office for program
and client specific information exchange and problem solving

•  Provided support to implement statewide initiatives

•  Represented the Department of Health and Human Service on the Children's Behavioral Health
Collaborative Executive Committee, Steering Committee and various workgroups

•  Co-coordinated the Safe Schools/Health Students grant with the Department of Education



2011 to 2014 Project Director, Health Profession Opportunity Project, NH Office of Minority Health and
Refugee Affairs, Concord, NH

•  Directed and implemented a five-year, $12 million-dollar healthcare workforce development
grant to recruit, train and place low income individuals in healthcare jobs

•  Developed RFP's, negotiated and managed contracts, and monitored grant and contractor
budgets

• Worked closely with regional health care providers to understand their workforce needs;
partnered with educational programs and other community groups to ensure that the individuals
are well prepared to meet employer expectations for technical and soft skills

•  Provided leadership and direction to develop innovative strategies to overcome system based

barriers to education, training and self-sufficiency for NH citizens

•  Collaborated with other NH workforce programs to efficiently use available resources to achieve

shared employment goals

2002 to 2010 Senior Director of Clinical Services, Easter Seals of NH, Manchester, NH

•  Provided leadership and oversight for the design, organization and delivery of clinical services for
Easter Seals NH, including the development of Autism Services, an adolescent program for dual
disorder treatment, residential DBT program and management of a residential treatment
program for adults with substance abuse issues

•  Provided oversight for the DCYF Administrative Case Review contract

•  Developed and monitored budgets for programs

• Worked collaboratively with Easter Seals Development to write federal, state, and foundation

grants, progress reports and budget monitoring

•  Developed relationships with funders and providers in NH and other states to pursue program

development and effective treatment and services for individuals and families

EDUCATION

•  Boston Coljege, Chestnut Hill, MA: Graduate School of Arts and Science Departmentof Sociology (Four
Year Doctoral Work)

•  B.A. Norte Dame College, Manchester, NH Major- Behavioral Science/ Minor- English Summa Cum
Laude, Dean's List ^

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Contracted to assist staff and clients on three community based residential facilities in the development

of client self-government programs through participant observation and didactics. Responsible for both
training and evaluation. Sites included Seacoast Mental Health Center- Portsmouth, NH and Greater
Manchester Mental Health Center- Manchester, NH. Responsible for leading the research design, data

collection and reporting for the evaluation of a partial Hospital Program. The primary methodology was
intensive interviewing.



DONNA KEEFE

EDUCATION I Trinity High School. Manchester, NH
Springfield College - BS Human Services/Administration
Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers - certified

EXPERIENCE I 12/1/2015 - Present

DIRECTOR OF NEW INITITIVES - GRANITE PATHWAYS NH

Granite Pathways Is a subsidiary of Fedcap. As the Director of New
Initiatives, I manage the local day to day infrastructure and work with
referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing, community relations and development. I was also
instrumental with the startup program development and implementation of
5 programs in NH, other duties include: staff supervision, communication
management with our corporate office and BOD communications.

9/2013-12/1/2015

NE DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS & CLIENT SERVICES

FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES

As the NE Director of Admissions & Client Services, I supervised the
admissions process throughout the Fedcap NE regions working with all
the referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing & client services. In this role, I worked in Rl to
systematically manage the federally mandated Interim Settlement
Agreement that shut down segregated workshops for the DD population.
The Fedcap team in Rl developed programs and systems to train the IDD
population to be gainfully employed in the community. This effort is
nationally recognized as Fedcap continues to educate other national
agencies via our Rl, National Center Institute for System Improvement
seminars available on the Fedcap website.

1995-2013

DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS

EASTER SEALS NH, ME, NY, VT

As Director of Admissions for the Adolescent Residential/Educational

Psychiatric & Neurobehavioral Programs I was responsible for the
admissions and transitions process within the continuum of care
programs as well as the final discharges from Easter Seals. I managed
referrals from various states and agencies where I applied knowledge of
differing state and agency placement requirements/laws. In addition to
working with families I managed the monthly billing, file retention,
census/wait list for 6 satellite intensive residential group homes and over
75 foster homes. I implemented may systems to manage the complex
admission/discharge process.

1992-1995



City of Manchester NH School Department
Served as a liaison between team members - parents, teachers,
administrators and students. I was responsible to Implement behavior
plans/procedures to transition special education students back into the
traditional classroom from an alternative/self-contained classroom. I also

worked closely and supported low income families through the lEP
process at the inner-city schools.

1988-1992

SERESC - BIRCHWOOD HIGH SCHOOL

Aided in developing class curriculums in this altemative setting for the
Seriously Emotionally Disturbed students. Taught classes under
supervision of teacher, organized field trips and participated in all goal-
oriented programs working 1:1 with the students if needed.

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS/Trainlngs

1997 - Easter Seals President's Meritorious Award - for outstanding
service by an employee

2000 - Easter Seals NH, VT, NY, Employee of the Year - Chosen from
1,200 employees

2003 - Easter Seals Sen/ice First Award - Customer Service Award

2004 - Crisis Intervention and Physical Restraint Training

2005 - State of NH DCYF/DJJS Directors Award - this award is given
yearly to one NH individual who goes above and beyond to help the state
workers solve their difficult cases

2015-Mental Health First Aid USA

2016 - CCAR Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers Program

2016 - NAMI NH's Connect Suicide Prevention Training

2016 - Crisis Intervention in the Workplace

2016 - Breaking the Stigma - Language Training

2017 - First Aid/CPR and Narcan Training

PAGE 2



Tara Mercado

Summary of Qualifications

•  HIPAA mandated code sets: ICD-9/10-CM, CPT, HCPCS • Epic • IDX • System A • MEOISENSE*
Seacoast •Medltech • eClinical Works • LMR/Data view •Ebridge 'RIS •ScerlS •PaySpan •EasyPrint
•Dataview ^Copia •Passport •Emdeon •CPU •QSl •Cerner •Microsoft Office

•  Medicare •Medicaid •United Health Care •Cigna •Anthem •Harvard Pilgrim •Tufts •Multiple

Commercial and Workers Comp Insurances •Self Pay 'State Contracts

Education

Seacoast Career School

Manchester, NH Health Claims Certificate •, 2007

New Hampshire Community Technical College 2003-2004

Studied Design

Central High School 1999-2003

Professional Background

Billing Specialist

Granite Pathways • Concord NH November 2018 to current

Substance Use Disorder Billing

Reviewing. Coding and Submitting Vendor Invoices for Payment

Creating and Training of accounts receivable process

Act as a Liaison between programs and billing company

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Communicate with facilities, vendors, and staff effectively

Maintain multiple spreadsheets with data entry

Billing Representative

XRAY Professional Association • Concord NH October 2017 to October 2018

Ancillary Billing

High volume posting of payments

Electronic paperbilling/appeals and follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds

Answer high volume patient calls and review monthly statements

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Communicate with hospital/facility staff and or responsible parties of patients

Research payer policies and covered policies via websites



Billing Representative

US Labs • Lakeville MA August 2016 to April 2017

Lab Billing

Assist in reducing A/R for multiple payers over 30 days

Data, Insurance, Order Entry
\

Electronic paper billing/appeals and follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds

Answer patient calls and review monthly statements

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Research payer policies via payer websites

Billing Representative II

Mass General Physicians Organization • Bedford, NH December 2012 to July 2016

Physicians Billing

Assist in reducing A/R for multiple payers over 30 days

Identify trends or inconsistencies with payers

Process paper and/or electronic appeals

Electronic and paper billing/appeals arid follow up

Process adjustment requests, denial posting, patient and insurance refunds, credits

Maintain quality communication with A/R managers within organization

Resolve customer service inquiries for patient requests

Assist GPM with account resolutions with projects or patient/provider concerns

Sort and process incoming correspondence

Research payer policies via payer websites

Claims Resolution Associate

Affiliated Professional Services • Wareham, MA October 2011 to October 2012

Physicians Billing

Responsible for high volume collections via electronic remittance as well as paper denials

Complete monthly aging over 45 days on all accounts to improve cash flow

Obtain all billing information, authorizations, and referrals via phone email and hospital systems

Process mall, payer denials, attorney requests, PIP exhaust letters, bankruptcies, self-pay statements
Perform follow up on outstanding claims

Process paper and/or electronic appeals

Accounts Receivable/Collections Specialist

Easter Seals • Manchester NH December 2007 to June 2010

Residential and Physicians Billing

Responsible for high volume collections (65 to 70 calls per day)

Complete monthly aging reports over 30 days to improve cash flow

Maintain electronic, web, paper and statement billing for several group homes

Perform data charge entry for residential stays, schooling and special stays

Obtain all billing Information, authorizations, and referrals via phone email and hospital systems

Research contracts thru state funded insurances, private carriers, self-pay and responsible school districts

Maintain monthly reports on revenue adjustments



•  Research variances

•  Report monthly cash projections for all insurance carriers

Achievement/Honors

Recipient of the President's Award at Easter Seals. Developed and implemented a new procedure for current

staff and state of NH workers to follow. This procedure eliminated revenue adjustments and saved resources

for collecting payments on outstanding claims deemed un-collectable. This procedure changed the

department goat of outstanding claims from 60 days to 30 days. The end result was increased cash flow and
reduction in A/R over 90 days.



Granite Pathways, Inc.

Family Support Program Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Lynn Fuller Family Support Contractor $27,843.20 100 $27,843.20
Donna Keefe Director of New Initiatiyes $80,000 10% $8,000.00
Patricia Reed State Director $105,000 5% $3,456.00
Tara Mercado ' Billing Specialist $43,680 5% $2,184.00

•



Jeffrey A. Meyen
Commissioner

Katjs S. Fox
Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSfiiRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREA V OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SER VICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-^110 1-800-852-3345 Ext 6738

Fax: 603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhbs.nb.gov

May 18, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services,
to exercise a renewal option to an existing agreement with Granite Pathways (Vendor #228900) 10
Ferry St, Suite 307, Concord, NH 03301, for the provision of a Family Support Coordinator for Peer
Recovery Support Services by increasing the price limitation by $105,000 from $120,000 to $225,000
and by extending the contract'completion date from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 2, 2017,
Item#10D.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019..

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

$120,000 $0 $120,000

2019
102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

92058503 $0 $105,000 $105,000

Total; $120,000 $105,000 $225,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is providing a Family Support Coordinator who will work with
existing family and community support groups in order to expand services for families of individuals with
Substance Use Disorders (SUD).



7'

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

As |the opioid crisis and substance misuse In general continue to severely impact New
Hampshire families and communities, it is critical that family support services remain available. Family
support groups provide critical support and education to families of individuals with substance use
disorders in order that they can more effectively respond to their loved one >^h a substance use
disorder. The Family Support Coordinator facilitates the family support groups in a manner that allows
for sharing- of ideas to better address other responsibilities in family life, such as: a partner, other
children, their job, extended family, social connections and involvement in the community.

Peer Recovery Support Services have become an important part of the Department's overall
strategy to respond to the growing substance misuse issues in the State of New Hampshire. The need
to respond has been increased by the opioid epidemic which has caused hundreds of deaths in the
past few years. Over the past few years, rates for opioid overdose have increased and related deaths
have tripled in New Hampshire, with close to five-hundred (500) deaths occurring in the year 2016.
Overdose-related emergency department visits have Increased by nearly 400%

Granite Pathways was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. The original
contract contained language that allows the Department to renew contracted services for up to'two (2)
years contingent on satisfactory performance and allowable funding and approval from the Governor
and Executive Council. This request amends the current agreement to utilize one (1) of the two (2)
years available for rehewing services, as specified in the Exhibit 0-1 of the original agreement.

The Contractor has served 2,245 participants through this program from August 2017 through
February 2()18. The Department is satisfied with services provided and continues to monitor contracted
services to ensure delivery of services is satisfactory.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request there may be a gap in
vita) family support services and families of individuals with substance use disorders may lose this
critical social support mechanism.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds from Governor Commission Funds
i

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox

Approved by:

Direc

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Thf. Dennrtrtutnt of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
FamOy Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Family Support Coordinator For Families
With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

This I"* Amendment to the Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders
(SUD) contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment One") dated this 23"' day of April, 2018, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Departmenr) and Granite Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business at 10 Ferry Street, Suite 307, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 2, 2017, (item #10D), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 4 the State may amend the agreement and renew contract services for
up to two (2) years; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exercise a renewal for one (1) of the two (2) years and renew contract
services upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2019.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitatton, to read:

$225,000.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurjement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330.

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Services. Subsection 2.1, Paragraph 2.1.4, to
read:

2.1.4 Ensure that Family Facilitators are prepared and trained to provide peer-to-peer support. In
compliance with 45 CFR 164 relating to psychotherapy notes and 42 CFR Part 2, as applicable,
to families with SUD/COD dependencies.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3 Training, Subsection 3.2, Paragraph 3.2.3. to read:

3.2.3 Promote the trainings through social media websites, as approved by the Department to
ensure compliance with safeguards related to the prohibition of storing Department data included
on any website or social media.

Granite Pathways Amendment #1
RFP-2017-BDAS-03-FAMIL Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

7. Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 3 Training, Subsection 3.3, Paragraph 3.3.3, to read:

3.3.3 Two (2) 6-hour Ethics Trainings that include, but are not limited to, updates of state and
federal privacy law, and state administrative rules relating to confidentiality of mental health or
substance use disorder treatment Information and records.

8. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #1.

9. Add Exhibit K. DHHS information Security Requirements. '

Granite Pathways Amendment
RFP-2017^DAS-03-FAMIL Page 2 of4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: KatJaS.Fox
Title: Director

CONTRACTOR NAME

r kQ>-^u- .
Date Name; (^V\T-^i\^\rt<^_''rt^c.KV<3Vv^ O '

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

State of ^ , County of^ on ^ before the undersigned offK^r,
personally appeared the person Identified "directly abov^or satisfectorily proven to be the person whose name Is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the capacity Indicated above.

Ax ^ ̂
wSigTralure of Notary Public or Justice of tri^ Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

donna KEEFE ••
^Notary PubDo-New HampshireMy Commission Expires September^j^g

Granite Pathways Amendment #1
RFP-2017-BOAS-03.FAMIL Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name: A u
Title: '" ''

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways
RFP-2017-BDAS-03-FAM1L

Amendment #1

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshfre Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Sen/Ices (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor lnitials^e:/\.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any netwprk or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will,be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Infomnation" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Conlractof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as. a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and passvrard>protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

I

Security Requirements ' f i / /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol tSFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless, Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othervrise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention '

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and,Disaster Recovery locations. -

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor.provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malvrare utilities. The environment as a

Security Requirements ti—lfll
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's .
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

V

B. Disposition

1. if the Contractor wiii .maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzatlon, or othenArise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NiST Special Publication 800-88; Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzatlon, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security evente that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confideritial information.

6. tf the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) wrtth the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

Security Requirements ^ i I
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Informalion, and must in ail other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The sMeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of Its occurrence. This Includes a
confidential Information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometrlc identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as. determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within .two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate P) must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfflcer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Ofncer@dhhs.nh.gov
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JefTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

KatjiS. Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271 -6738 1-800-804-0909

Fax: 603-271-6105 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

June 27. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, to enter into an agreement with Granite Pathways (Vendor #228900) 10 Ferry St,
Suite 307, Concord, NH 03301. to provide a Family Support Coordinator, in an amount not to
exceed $120,000, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30,
2018. 100% Other Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Year
2018.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOROOMMISSION FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $120,000

Total: $120,000

EXPLANATION

This request is for the provision of a Family Support Coordinator who will work with
existing family and community support groups in order to expand services for families of
individuals with Substance Use Disorders (SUD).
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The Family Support Coordinator w\\\:

• Represent families in a range of w/orkgroups, committees, meetings, and other
activities related to substance use disorder and promote family support groups;

• Recruit, enroll, and provide supervision and support to family support group
facilitators;

• Coordinate recovery coach training along with other trainings for family support
group facilitators and other community members and provide scholarships to
these trainings as appropriate;

• Assess the family support group network and identify areas where new or
additional family support groups are needed; and

• Develop and implement a plan to sustain services without state funding.

The Department's goal is to develop Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS) for
individuals and their families. Family support groups provide critical support and education to
families of individuals with substance use disorders in order to assist them to grow and
strengthen. These supports assist individuals and families to be more effective in responding
to their family member and loved ones with substance use disorders and to better address
other responsibilities in the family member's life, such as: a partner, , children, a career,
extended family, social connections and involvement in their community. A key component of
these groups is the peer nature of the support, which can allow families to share in their
experiences and allows families with more experience to help guiding newer families.

Peer Recovery Support Services have become an important part of the Department's
overall strategy to respond to the growing substance misuse issues in the State of New
Hampshire. The need to respond has been increased by the opioid epidemic which has
caused hundreds of deaths in the past few years. Over the past few years, rates for opioid
overdose have increased and related deaths have tripled in New Hampshire, with close to five-
hundred (500) deaths occurring in the year 2016. Overdose-related emergency department
visits have increased by nearly 400%.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request there may be a
gap in vital family support services and families of individuals with substance use disorders
may lose this critical social support mechanism.

Granite Pathways was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A
Request for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services' website
from February 16, 2017 through March 22. 2017. One proposal was received.

The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific
knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of
the proposal. The Score Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this
Agreement has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and (Council.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds from Governor Commission Funds

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved b

rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: RFP-2017-BDAS-03-FAMIL Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders /SjJB)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite Pathways

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-9tl-3703

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920510-3382-0000-

102-500731

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address

10 Ferry Street • Suite 307
Concord, NH 03301

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$120,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.11 (Todtractor SignatLre 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowledgement: 'iState of j\) , County of

On^OV\€.. \'Ry'SO\^fore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block l.l I, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.IUUlW<liVU IIJ UIWJV !•< A*.

istice of the Peace1.13.1 Signature of Notary Pu

[SealJ ^
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notar^^r Justice of the Peace

^e_
Ti4 State Agency Signature

DONNA KEEFE

wy Cowmlwton Exptrw Septwtbtry.a ttl

Date:

A. lA A X a\ \
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Si^atory

icn/"1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of PersonnetTi/" applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by_ the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: ~ A / \ / \ ^. . a ^ ftOn:
1X n3

1.18 Approval by the GovemoJymd Executiv<|)Council| (ifapplicable)

By: VJ On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block t. I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHlBrr A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement,'and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that'this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBrr B which is incorporate herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted byN.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States E)epartmcnt of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
persofuiel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the anached EXHIBIT A.

U, CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph.13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and'shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $l,000,0()0per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the properly.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Apwment no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certiricate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensaiion").

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this A^eement shall not be
construed to confisr any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect. /

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date_[22llri3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

Exhibft A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited Er>gllsh proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the tight to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements ur>der this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, r>o services shall
continue after June 30. 2017. and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30.2017, unless and until an appropriation
for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall provide and supervise one (1) part-time Family Support
Coordinator, who shall perform the following duties that include, but may not be
limited to:

2.1.1. Serve on work groups, advisory councils, and committees relating to
Substance Use Disorder/Co-Occurring Disorder (SUD/COD).

2.1.2. Supervise and support the family support group facilitators statewide
through a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) as approved by the
Department. The Contractor shall ensure facilitators:

2.1.2.1. AtterxJ trainings twice a year;

2.1.2.2. Are provided with marketing material; and

2.1.2.3. Receive 1:1 supervision, as needed.

2.1.3. Recruit and enroll new Family Facilitators in the National Alliance for the
Mentally III (NAMI) Family Leadership Training Program. The Contractor
shall achieve this through;

2.1.3.1. Encouragement of family members who attend the Family Groups
regularly to become facilitators.

2.1.3.2. interview interested individuals who connect through the
Contractor's website.

tnGrantte Pathways ExNbltA Contractor
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

Exhibit A

2.1.3.3. Referrals through trusted professional contacts/resources such as
Behavioral/Mental Health agencies, Master Licensed Alcohol and
Drug Counselors, SUD.

2.1.3.4. Advertisements through social media and local newspapers.

2.1.3.5. Engagement with the Continuum of Care fecilitators In each of the
thirteen (13) public health regions.

2.1.3.6. Engagement wHh the Integrated Delivery Networks (IDNs) in each
of the seven (7) IDN regions.

2.1.4. Ensure that Family Facilitators are prepared and trained to provide peer-to-
peer support to families with SUD/COD struggles.

2.1.5. Assess the need for additional support group inquiries and referrals
throughout the state. The Contractor shall ensure this through the following
methods, which may not be limited to:

2.1.5.1. Review the growing number of attendance in existing groups.

2.1.5.2. Suggest the start of new groups from any agency, church, school
or groups of parents interested In having a Family Support Group
In their area.

2.1.5.3. Connect with agencies in areas that lack current support groups.

2.1.5.4. Engaging with the Continuum of Care Facilitators in each of the
thirteen (13) public health regions.

2.1.5.5. Engaging with the IDNs in each of the seven (7) IDN regions.

2.1.6. Research new avenues to promote Family Support Groups in New
Hampshire.

2.1.7. Develop and implement a sustalnabiiity plan.

3. Training

3.1. The Contractor shall host a minimum of three (3) recovery coach trainings that will
ensure the following:

3.1.1. Target family members of individuals with a SUD;

3.1.2. Curriculums arxJ materials shall be Department approved prior to scheduling
any training; and

3.1.3. A minimum of eight (8) Individuals that attend the trainings shall receive
scholarships to attend said trainings.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the following marketing plan in order to reach individuals
who may be Interested in receiving Recovery Coach Academy trainings:

Granite Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Inll
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New Hampshire Department of Health arKl Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

Exhibit A

3.2.1. AnrK>unc6ment of Recovery Coach trainings at all eighteen (18) Family

Support Group meetings.

3.2.2. Contact each New Hampshire Recovery Center and other recovery
community organizations to promote the trainings for family members and
family advocates.

3.2.3. Promote the trainings on social media websites.

3.2.4. Print and distribute flyers to the Family Facilitators to have avaiiable at the

various support groups throughout the state for group attendees to take.

3.2.5. ServJ enrolls to the recovery support networks to share broadly within their

communities.

3.2.6. The use of NAMI-NH and the NH Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors

Association's marketing contacts, mailing lists and newsletters.

3.2.7. Contact the Continuum of Care Facilitators in each of the thirteen (13) public
health regions.

3.3. The Contractor shall conduct trainings that include:

3.3.1. Two (2) 6-hour Suicide Prevention Trainings.

3.3.2. Two (2) 6-hour HIV/AIDS Trainings.

3.3.3. Two (2) 6-hour Ethics Treinings. ,

3.4. The Contractor shall provide a Family Facilitator training plan that includes, but may

not be limited to:

3.4.1. The 2-day (16-hour) NAMI Family Leadership Training Program as provided

three (3) times per contract year.
)

3.4.2. Four (4) modules which shall Include:

3.4.2.1. Structure and group process of NAMi's family support group

model.

3.4.2.2. Facilitation skills.

3.4.2.3. How to manage negative group dynamics.

3.4.2.4. Start and run a successful support group.

3.4.3. NAMI-NH trainers.

3.4.4. Participation shall be limited to ten (10) people per session.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the Family Support Group Data Report, which shall

include, but is not limited to:

Qranfte Pathways Exhibit A Contractor InWala
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families WHh Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

ExhibH A

4.1.1. Date and location of family support group meetings.

4.1.2. Numt)er of people present and their relationship to an individual with SUD.

4.1.3. Number of new participants.

4.1.4. Primary drug of choice for family member with a SUD.

4.1.5. Any secondary drugs used by a family memt>er with a SUD.

4.1.6. Age range of family memt>er with a SUD.

4.1.7. Average age of family member with a SUD.

4.1.8. Any comments regarding treatment, recovery, incarceration, and/or relapse.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide a Facilitator Recruitment Report which shall include, but Is
not limited to:

4.2.1. List of active facilitators and the groups they facilitate.

4.2.2. Action plan for recruiting addit'ional facilitators for any group with less than
two fadiitators.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a Marketing/Community Engagement/Development Report
which shall include, but is not limited to:

4.3.1. A narrative detailing outreach and marketing efforts.

4.3.2. A narrative detailing engagement with work groups, advisory councils, and
committees relating to SUD.

4.3.3. A nan-ative detailing activity to assess the need for additional support
groups.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide a Training Report that shall Include, but Is not limited to:

4.4.1. Numt)er of new Family Facilitators completirrg the NAMi Family leadership
Training Program.

4.4.2. Dates and locations of recovery coach, suicide prevention, HiV/AIDS, and
ethics trainings.

4.4.3. Number of individuals completing trainings.

4.4.4. Primary town of residence of individuals completing trainings.

4.4.5. Number of scholarships provided for trainings.

Granita Pathways Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator For Families With Substance Use Disorders (SUD)

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided 1^ the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract is funded with funds from Governor's Commission Funds.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

2. Payment for services shall t)e made monthly as follows:

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual exper>ditures incun'ed in the folfillment of
this agreement. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved budget line item shown In
Exhibit B-1.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20") worfdng
day of each month, which Identifies and requests reimbu^ment for authori^ expenses Incurred In
the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to
Department programs and services.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. Contractors wiO
keep detailed recces of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37,
' Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to: OR Invoices
shall be mailed to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant St., 3*^ Floor North
Concord, NH 03301
Email address: Jaime.powers@dhhs.nh.gov

2.6. Payments may be v^thheld pervJing receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services and In this Exhibit B.

3. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at no charge
to the Department for the duration of the contact period.

I

4. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts t>etween
tHXfget line Items, retail items, amendments of related budget exhibits witNn the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by vwitten agreement of txXh parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Granite Pathways Exhibit B Contractor In
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
ExhibH C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all hinds received by the Contractor
urtder the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for sen/ices provided to eligible
Individuais and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuais such eligibility determination shall be made in accofdar>ce with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, ord^, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination; Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eliglt>illty determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with aD forms arxJ documentation
regarding eligibility determrnations that the Departm ent may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application fonn and that each applicant or re-applkant shall t>e Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations. ,

/

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understar>ding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for c(^s incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the ConbBctor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such sen/ices.

7. Condttlons of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligble Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
Of other third party furKlers, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, In which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs; ^

OMT/14
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the fdiowing records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses Irwurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, ar)d all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
irvlcind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrolimenL atterxiance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Deparbn^t to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAD standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and trarrscripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptior>s and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the senrices and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

ctor InExhlt>it C - Special Provisions Contractor I
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all posts and nor>-alk>wable expenses irx^jrred by the Contractor to die date of the report and
coni^ning such other informaton as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the D«partment or deemed satisfectory by the Department

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted wHhln thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Rnai Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

t

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of tf>e Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Rnal Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses daimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and.otfier materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Indude the fotlowing
statement

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract wth the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provid^ In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Hum«i Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) procKiced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, induding, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any fadtities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and munldpal authorities and with any direction of any Public Of^r or ofRcers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon frie contractor with respect to the
operation of the fadlity or the provision of the services at such fadlity. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said fadlity or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the fadlities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of ttie .State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
lav^ and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the redpient recaves $25,000 or more and has 50 or

^  ExWWtC-SpedeJProvWon# Contraclof InMala"^ 1
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement. txJt are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http7/www.ojp.usdoj/about/oa/pdfs/C8rt.pdf.

17. LimKed English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited E^lish Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control ar)d Safe Streets Act of 1968 ar>d Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Wiistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisitlori Threshold as defined in 48
CFR2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee WHtsTLEBLowER Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

. (a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Rscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights arxi protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as descrit^ed in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in alt
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use sut)Contractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that spedftes activities and reporting
responsibilities of the sut>contractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective sut>contractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reportirtg
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor InitiBis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying ail subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and wt>en the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identtfres deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINmONS

As used in the Contract the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct arfo Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled 'Finarwial Management Guidelines' and which contains the r^utatior^s govemlr^g the financial
activities of contractor agencies wrhich have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligibie
individuals by the Contractor in accordar>ce with the terms and conditions of the Contract arxj setting forth
the total cost and soufces of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals'hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or tfiat specified activity determln^ by the Department arfo specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract. r

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amertded or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulatior» promitigated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative ̂ ocedures Act NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Corrtract will not supF>tant any existing federal funds available for these services.

wiin* Paae 5 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
follows:

4. CONDmONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereurxJer,
Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or avaQability of funds, including any subsequent changes to ti>e
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
rer^ces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, ̂ ope of Services, in \Ahole or In part. In no event shall
the State be llat>le for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available furtds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such fur>ds become available. If ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Accountfs) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the following
larrguage;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State.

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercislrrg Its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early temiination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Ran for services under the Agreement. Including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
ar)d establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed Information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoir>g
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected Individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

Exhibit 01 - Revisions to General Provisions Contractor initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
ExhibH D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provistons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free WorKplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100^90, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certificatioh is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 10CL690. Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they wID rrmintain a drug-f^ workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sut>^rantee8 and 8ut>-contr8Ctor8) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of feet upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termirution of grants, or goverrvnent wide suspension or debannent. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Departn>ent of Heaith and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workpli^ and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the perfomnance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required ̂  paragraph (a) that, as a corxlition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the stirtemerit; and
1.4.2. Notify tlw employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othemvise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

D - CertlScation regarding Drug Free Contractor Iniflab'—^ ^
Workplece Requlremcnti — 1
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identiftcation number(8) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabtlitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program appro^ for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or cth^ appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4, 1.S.andl.S.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the 8lte(8) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

G mv\'.4^0i'VKvJ<X4S "n'V.n ,
Id C6-v\^ -

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

G -t9- I 7 Sg.r«B-yv<r^ai.ij^l\ •
Date Name:

Title:

Exhibit D - CedlAcation recanting Drug Fr»e Contractor initials.— ^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101r121. Govemment wide Guidance for New RestricUons on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Neeidy FamDIes under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV*0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an offlcer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection vdth the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specrflc mention
8ut>-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influertce an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or emplo^ of Congress, or an employee ̂  a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or 8ut>-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-i.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such follure.

Contractor Name

Date Name
Title

Exhibit E - Certification Regsnfing Lobbying Contractor Initlais;
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION ,
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

-The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisjons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
repreMntative. as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION i

1. By signing and 8ut>mitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certrfication required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certific^n or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Se^ces' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or en explanation shal) disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
v^hen DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary particpant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
tt^ its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The tenns'covered tran8action."debarTed.''suspended.'"inellgible."lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant,* 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,' 'proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by 8ut)mitting this proposal (contract) that should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter Into any tower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, susperKled, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inerigibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS. without modification, In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarity excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows t^ the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibilrty of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not requir^ to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded patties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person is
suspended, debarred, ineligibie, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the l>est of its knowledge arvl belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Inetigible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convi^ of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offerrse in
connection with obtaining, attemptlrrg to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract ur»der a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitnist
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civiliy charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certificatton; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cauM or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant is ur^le to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shaD attach an explanation'to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certlfres to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this trarwaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, Ineliglbility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Y72tY\
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
ExhIbH G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLfBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminatlon requirements, which may include: ^

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in emptoyment practioes or In
the delivery of services or berrefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, ar^ sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
refererKe, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohbits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal finar>ciai
assistance from discriminating on the t>asls of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohbits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accomntodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1661,1683.1685-66), which prohibits
discrimir^ion on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975(42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations • OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection ̂ the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); ̂ ecutive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based ar>d neighborhood organizations;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which prote^ employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certrticate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certiftcation shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debanment.

Exhibit G

Contractor Inttials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable cof)tracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

]. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: (3

?rs.r VJ'V tot
Date Name:

ExNWG ^
Contractor Initiah
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New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Humart Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tot>acco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Ad), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
conbacted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of hraith, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contrad. loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solety by
Medicare or M^icaid funds, and portions of facHlties used for inpatient dmg or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil rr>onetary penalty of up to
81000 per day and/or the imposition of an ̂ ministrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contrador identified in Sedion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contrador's
representative as identified in Sedion 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foltowing
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contrad. the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Ad of 1994.

Contrador Name

Date Name:
Title:

ExhMH-CerttficationRoganling ContrBdor InKf
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMEWT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of IndrviduaDy Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 ar>d 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreen)ent and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Hunnan Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

1

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Fkleral Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aoareoation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Acf means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical hlealth
Act, TitleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Indivlduar shall have the same meaning as the term "Individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section'164.501(9).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^
tA PvMhH I CAntr*<4Ar t3/2014 ExhMt I Contractor Irtttals'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secfetarv' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Securftv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health infonnation that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
rts directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to rrtaking any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially arid
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for^he purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, witfK)ut first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 ExMMi Contractor I
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

6. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
t>e bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oblloatlons and Actfvltles of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate beconies aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the Gkelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply vrith all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shail make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

<»■?'3^14 ExNWt I Conlractor \rMiAa^ • \
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's comrHlance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity,-or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Se^on 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendn^nt and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accountirtg of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosMres with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business As^ciate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvardlng the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shaji Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

i. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or aeated or received by ̂ e Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or Qmitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disused by Business Associate under this Agreement pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and condltk>r>s (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately tenninate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mbcellaneoua

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othenvise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as an)ended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amerxled.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data CXvnershlD. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

e. Seoreoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shaU not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and corKiitions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f- Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and irxfemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

^ -Pfx
Name of Authoozed Representative

•VV
the Con ctor

n
Representative

"?)■ \rt)r
Title ofAuthorized Representative

1 1-7
Date

Sign^re of At

Name of Authorized Representative

$)r Vi^ ̂
Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDiNG ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability ertd Transparency Ad (FFATA) requires prime awardees of indlvlduai
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award b subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CfR Part 170 (Reportir>g Subaward and Executive Compertsation information), the
Department of Health and Human Servicas (DHHS) must report the fbOowing information for any
subaward or contract award 8ul)ject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive ofthe purpose ofthe funding action ^
7. Location of Itw entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. htore than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the avrard or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountabifity and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward arfo Executive Compensation information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed infbrmation as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with at) appTicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor

cumHsn 10713
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true end accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is

2. In your business or orpanlzation's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, andfor

^rative agreen>ents7

NO YES

If the answer to #2 atx>ve is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 7^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount;

Amount:

aM»«6nio7i3
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